CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

A Joint Powers Agency of the
Town of Corte Madera
Town of San Anselmo
City of Larkspur

Business Item A -Attachment 1

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

Independent Auditor's Report ............................................................................................ 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis ............................................................................. 5
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................... 11
Statement of Activities ............................................................................................... 12
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds:
Balance Sheet ........................................................................................................... 15
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
with the Statement of Net Position ...................................................................... 16
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance .................. 17
Reconciliation of the Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental
Fund with the Statement of Activities ................................................................. 18
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual:
General Fund ...................................................................................................... 19
Proprietary Funds:
Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................ 23
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ............................. 24
Statement of Cash Flows ......................................................................................... 25
Fiduciary Fund:
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ....................................................................... 29
Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................................... 31

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page
Required Supplementary Information:
Pension Plans:
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability- Last Ten Fiscal Years ................................................................................. 59
Schedule of Contributions - Last Ten Fiscal Years ...................................................... 59
Other-Post Employment Benefits Plan:
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ....................... 60
Schedule of Contributions .......................................................................................... 61
Supplemental Information:
General Fund Combining Balance Sheets ........................................................................ 65
General Fund Governmental Fund Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ............................................................... 66
Operating Fund Combining Balance Sheets .................................................................... 67
Operating Fund Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances ............................................................................................. 68
Agency Fund:
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities ............................................................ 70

Business Item A -Attachment 1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Honorable Members of the Police Council
of the Central Marin Police Authority
Larkspur, California

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Central Marin Policy Authority (Authority),
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Authority’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Authority, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison listed in the Table of
Contents as part of the basic financial statements for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, pension information, and OPEB information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplemental information are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.
The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the supplemental information are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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The supplemental information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Emphasis of a Matter
Going Concern – Cash Balances and Deficit Net Position
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Authority will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 14, the Authority’s financial conditions are as follows:


As of June 30, 2019, the Authority's cash balance was $2,331,852 and the Authority had a deficit
net position of $29,114,573.



Authority-wide expenses exceeded revenues by $789,268 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.



The Insurance Internal Service Fund's ending net position was a deficit of $665,069 at June 30,
2019.

These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern.
Management's plans regarding those matters are also described in Note 14. The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. The emphasis of
this matter does not constitute a modification to our opinions.

Badawi & Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Berkeley, California
January 10, 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Authority is issuing its financial statements in the format prescribed by the provisions of Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34), which requires the Authority to provide this
overview of its financial activities for the fiscal year.
Please read this overview in conjunction with your reading of the accompanying Basic Financial
Statements.
THE PURPOSE OF THE AUTHORITY
The Authority is a joint powers authority of the City of Larkspur, the Town of Corte Madera and the Town
of San Anselmo, in Marin County, California, that provides police services to its members’ citizens. The
Authority’s operations are principally financed by contributions from its members.
FISCAL 2019 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2019 include the following:
Authority-wide:
 The Authority’s total assets were $16,884,982 of which $2,331,852 was cash and investments and
$14,303,525 was capital assets.
 The cash position increased $1,071,260.
 Net position was a deficit balance of $29,114,573; net of subtractions for liabilities including
accrued payroll, accrued compensated absences, insurance claims payable, net OPEB liability and
net pension liability for fiscal year 2018-19. This is an increase of $789,268 mainly due to the Other
Post-Employment benefits (OPEB) and Accrued Liabilities including accrued payroll and accrued
health insurance.
 Authority revenues included $11,973,344 in charges for services and $1,238,604 in operating
grants and contributions.
Fund Basis:
 General Fund assets totaled $2,187,545 of which $2,002,940 was in cash and investments.
 General Fund fund balance was $1,622,806, all unassigned to cover operational expenditures, see
note 8.
 General Fund revenues were $13,262,567, of which $11,821,307 was received from the Authority’s
three members.
 General Fund expenditures were $12,297,262 principally including $5,611,070 for field operations,
$3,669,224 for administration and $1,081,223 for communications.
 Revenues exceeded expenditures by $965,305 and fund balance ended the fiscal year at $1,622,806.
Community Facilities District 2008-01:


Community Services District 2008-01 is being reported as a fiduciary fund of the Authority named
“Police Facility Redemption Fund”. This fund accounts for the restricted cash and investments and
the amounts due to pay the bonds associated with the completion of the police facility.
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The Basic Financial Statements
With the implementation of GASB 34, the Authority now issues Authority-wide and individual Fund
financial statements, called Basic Financial Statements. Since the Authority has only one governmental
Fund, the difference between these two statements is principally the recording of the Authority’s
governmental capital assets net, net OPEB liability and net pension liability in the Authority-wide
statements.
The Authority-wide Financial Statements provide a longer-term view of the Authority’s activities as a
whole and comprise the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Net
Position provides information about the financial position of the Authority as a whole, including all its
capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by corporations. The
Statement of Activities provides information about all the Authority’s revenues and all its expenses, also
on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or expenses of each of the
Authority’s programs.
Statement of Net Position: Governmental Activities
Net Position at June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019
Current and other assets

$

2,581,457

2018
$

Inc./(Dec.)

1,414,082

$

1,167,375

Capital assets

14,303,525

14,721,526

(418,001)

Total assets

16,884,982

16,135,608

749,374

6,441,185

7,807,508

(1,366,323)

Net pension liability

23,376,722

23,631,308

(254,586)

Net OPEB liability

23,404,495

22,867,960

536,535

Total deferred outflows of resources

1,439,054

1,442,337

(3,283)

Other liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

837,308

553,559

283,749

Total liabilities

49,057,579

48,495,164

562,415

3,383,161

3,773,257

(390,096)

14,122,054

14,596,168

(474,114)

111,875

-

Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

(43,348,502)
$

(29,114,573)

111,875

(42,921,473)
$

(28,325,305)

(427,029)
$

(789,268)

Cash and other assets increased by $1,167,375. This can be contributed to a careful monitoring of operating
expenditures and strong performance in revenues. See page 19, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual General Fund for details.


Capital Assets decreased by $418 thousand due to the addition of accumulated depreciation and
retirement of capital assets.
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Net OPEB liability increased by $536 thousand and Pension liability decreased $254 thousand
Liability changes due to plan experience which differs from what was assumed in the prior year
and/or from assumption changes during the year.



Other long-term liabilities increased by $284 thousand mainly due to an increase in accrued
liabilities and claim paid for workers compensation.
Statement of Activities: Governmental Activities
2018-19 Revenues by Source and Expenses by Program
Changes in Net Position:
2019
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions

$

11,973,344
1,238,604

General revenues:
Investment earnings
Other Revenue
Total revenues
Expenses:
Administration
Communications
Investigations
Juvenile
Field operations
Traffic
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses

Net position - ending

$

$

Inc./(Dec)

11,224,383
1,329,315

$

748,961
(90,711)

50,847
-

8,823
7,824

42,024
(7,824)

13,262,795

12,570,345

692,450

4,230,920
1,131,418
1,016,854
400,770
6,643,701
622,357
6,043

4,327,190
1,171,829
738,625
323,105
6,027,868
770,347
339

(96,270)
(40,411)
278,229
77,665
615,833
(147,990)
(5,704)

14,052,063

13,359,303

692,760

(789,268)

(788,958)

(310)

(28,325,305)

(27,536,347)

(788,958)

Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position - beginning

2018

(29,114,573)

$

(28,325,305)

$

(789,268)



The main source of program revenues are derived from the contributions of City of Larkspur, the
Town of Corte Madera and the Town of San Anselmo. The contributions are based on a funding
split formula depending on the needs for each City.



Total revenues increased by $692,450. Member contributions increased $748,961 and operating
grants and contributions decreased by $90,711.



The overall program expenses increased by $692,760. Administration decreased by $96,270 a move
of personnel to the Field Operations division increased by $615,833.
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The Governmental Fund Financial Statements report the Authority’s operations in more detail than the
Authority-wide statements and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the Authority’s General Fund.
The Fund Financial Statements measure only current revenues and expenditures and fund balances; they
exclude capital assets, any long-term debt or other long-term amounts.
Comparisons of Budget and Actual financial information are also presented for the General Fund.
CAPITAL ASSETS
Under GASB 34, the Authority is required to record all its capital assets at their historical cost, and to
depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives. Capital assets of $14,303,525 at June 30, 2019
represent vehicles and equipment costing $2,644,937 net of accumulated depreciation of $1,629,377 land
assets of $1,890,000 and the police facility at $13,815,718. Further detail on capital assets may be found in
Note 5 to the financial statements.
LONG-TERM DEBT
On August 25, 2018 the Agency entered into a $168,769 four-year lease agreement with PNC Equipment
LLC, for the purpose of financing the purchase of four (4) 2019 Ford Fusion SE Hybrids, one (1) 2019 Ford
Fusion ES Hybrid and five (5) Emergency package/installation. The lease principal and interest payments
are payable annually on September 25 of each year, commencing on September 25, 2018 through
September 25, 2020.
In January 2019, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with PNC Equipment for $131,108 for the
purpose of purchasing five unmarked police vehicles. The lease bears interest of 3.432% and the principal
and interest payments are payable annually each February 15th and commencing on February 15th 2022.
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
These Basic Financial Statements are intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the Authority’s finances. Questions about this report should be directed to the Finance
Director of the City of Larkspur at 400 Magnolia Avenue, Larkspur, California 94939

8

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The purpose of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities is to summarize the entire Authority's
financial activities and financial position. They are prepared on the same basis as is used by most businesses, which
means they include all the Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources and all its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, as well as all its revenues and expenses. This is known as the full accrual basis-the effect of all
the Authority's transactions is taken into account, regardless of whether or when cash changes hands, but all material
internal transactions between Authority funds have been eliminated.

The Statement of Net Position reports the difference between the Authority's total assets and deferred outflows of
resources and the Authority's total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, including all the Authority's capital
assets and all its long-term debt. The Statement of Net Position focuses the reader on the composition of the
Authority's net position by subtracting total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources from total assets and
deferred outflows of resources. The Statement of Net Position summarizes the financial position of all the
Authority's Governmental Activities in a single column.
The Authority's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund. Since the Authority's Internal
Service Fund services the General Fund, its activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after
eliminating inter-fund transactions and balances.
The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the Authority's net position. It is also prepared on the
full accrual basis, which means it includes all the Authority's revenues and all its expenses, regardless of when cash
changes hands. This differs from the "modified accrual" basis used in the Fund financial statements, which reflect
only current assets, current liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, available revenues and measurable
expenditures.

The Statement of Activities presents the Authority's expenses first, listed by program. Program revenues-that is,
revenues which are generated directly by these programs-are then deducted from program expenses to arrive at the
net expense of the governmental program. The Authority's general revenues are then listed in the Governmental
Activities column, and the Change in Net Position is computed and reconciled with the Statement of Net Position.
These financial statements along with the fund financial statements and footnotes are called Basic Financial
Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid
Deposit pay as you go
Capital assets (Note 5):
Land
Depreciable, net

$

2,331,852
137,730
46,875
65,000
1,890,000
12,413,525

Total assets

16,884,982

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow - pension contribution
Related to pensions (Note 9)
Deferred outflow - OPEB contribution
Related to OPEB (Note 10)

2,444,275
3,334,961
657,580
4,369

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

6,441,185

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Compensated absences (Note 2G):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Long-term debt (Note 6):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Claims payable - workers' compensation (Note 11)
Claims payable - general liability (Note 11)
Net pension liability (Note 9):
Due in more than one year
Net OPEB liability (Note 10):
Due in more than one year

109,290
445,355
20,646
189,009
289,430
73,008
108,463
854,671
186,490
23,376,722
23,404,495

Total liabilities

49,057,579

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions (Note 9)
Related to OPEB (Note 10)

1,326,845
2,056,316

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

3,383,161

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)

14,122,054
111,875
(43,348,502)

Total net position

$
See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position
$

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
Administration
Communications
Investigations
Juvenile
Field operations
Traffic
Interest on long-term debt

Expenses

Charges for
Services

$ 4,230,920
1,131,418
1,016,854
400,770
6,643,701
622,357
6,043

$ 3,773,803
1,009,177
906,991
357,470
5,925,903
-

$

Total Governmental Activities

$ 14,052,063

$ 11,973,344

$ 1,238,604

117,374
31,388
28,210
11,118
184,309
866,205
-

(339,743)
(90,853)
(81,653)
(32,182)
(533,489)
243,848
(6,043)
(840,115)

General revenues:
Investment earnings

50,847

Total general revenues

50,847

Change in Net Position

(789,268)

Net Position (Deficit)

(28,325,305)

Net Position (Deficit) - Ending

$ (29,114,573)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current year.

The Authority's General Fund is its only governmental fund and therefore a major fund. It is the general operating
fund of the Authority. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The major revenue sources for this Fund are unrestricted revenues from the Town of Corte Madera, the
City of Larkspur, and the Town of San Anselmo. Expenditures are made for public safety.

13
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
GENERAL FUND-GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid
Total assets

$

2,002,940
137,730
46,875

$

2,187,545

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable

101,470
442,623
20,646
564,739

Total liabilities
Fund Balances: (Note 8)
Nonspendable
Unassigned

46,875
1,575,931
1,622,806

Total fund balances
$

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
WITH THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

Total fund balances reported on the governmental fund balance sheet

$ 1,622,806

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
from those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following:
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the Governmental Fund.
ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET POSITION
Internal service funds are not governmental funds. However, they are used by management
to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance to individual governmental
funds. The net current assets of the Internal Service Funds are therefore included in
Governmental Activities in the following line items in the Statement of Net Position.
Cash and investments
Deposit - pay as you go
Accounts payable
Claims payable - workers' compensation
Claims payable - general liability
ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS
The deferred outflow of resources is not due and payable in the current period, and
therefore is not reported in the governmental fund:
Pension related items
OPEB related items

14,303,525

328,912
65,000
(7,820)
(854,671)
(186,490)

5,779,236
661,949

The deferred inflow of resources below is not an available resource in the current period
and therefore is not reported in the governmental fund:
Pension related items
OPEB related items

(1,326,845)
(2,056,316)

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the Funds:
Compensated absences
Long-term debt
Interest payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

(478,439)
(181,471)
(2,732)
(23,376,722)
(23,404,495)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ (29,114,573)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
REVENUES:
Revenue from other agencies:
City of Larkspur
Town of Corte Madera
Town of San Anselmo
State vehicle abatement
State COPS grant
Other agency
Investment earnings
Police charges
Revenue from CFD
Other revenue

$

3,925,442
3,511,174
4,384,691
36,046
466,205
246,685
50,618
154,540
400,000
87,166
13,262,567

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Administration
Communications
Investigations
Juvenile
Field operations
Traffic
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

3,669,224
1,081,223
853,625
327,253
5,611,070
523,771
152,790
74,995
3,311

Total expenditures

12,297,262

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

965,305

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital lease financing
Proceeds from sale of property
Transfers (out) (Note 4)

131,108
9,106
(450,000)
(309,786)

Total Other Financing Sources
Net change in fund balances

655,519

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of year

967,287

FUND BALANCES, End of year

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUND WITH THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
The schedule below reconciles the Net Change in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only change in
current assets and deferred outflows of resources and current liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities
reported in the Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

655,519

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because of the
following:
CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS
Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities
the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.
Capitalized expenditures are added back to fund balance
Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance
Retirements of capital assets are deducted from fund balance

159,597
(543,797)
(33,800)

LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
in the Statement of Net Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.
Proceeds from the capital lease financing are deducted from fund balance
Interest expense
Repayment of debt principal is added back to fund balance

(131,108)
(2,732)
74,995

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS
The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in
governmental funds (net change):
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows related to pensions
Net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows related to pensions

(22,010)
(404,207)
(853,969)

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurance to individual funds.
The portion of the net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds arising out
of their transactions with governmental funds is reported with governmental activities,
because they service those activities.
Change in Net Position - Internal Service Fund

312,245

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Variance with
Final Budget
Original

Final

Actual

Positive

Budgeted

Budgeted

Amounts

(Negative)

REVENUES:
Revenue from other agencies:
City of Larkspur

$

3,914,650

$

3,925,442

$

3,925,442

$

-

Town of Corte Madera

3,501,237

3,511,174

3,511,174

-

Town of San Anselmo

4,373,208

4,384,691

4,384,691

-

20,000

20,000

36,046

16,046

State COPS Grant

State vehicle abatement

300,000

300,000

466,205

166,205

Other agency

140,000

140,000

246,685

106,685

200

200

50,618

50,418

41,000

41,000

154,540

113,540

250,000

250,000

400,000

150,000

31,000

31,000

87,166

56,166

12,571,295

12,603,507

13,262,567

659,060

Administration

3,074,171

3,091,877

3,669,224

(577,347)

Communications

1,092,160

1,092,160

1,081,223

793,065

793,065

853,625

Investment earnings
Police charges
Revenue from CFD
Other revenue
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Investigations
Juvenile
Field operations
Traffic

10,937
(60,560)

332,208

332,208

327,253

4,955

6,067,534

6,072,040

5,611,070

460,970

667,157

667,157

523,771

143,386

Capital outlay

-

-

152,790

(152,790)

-

Debt service:

-

Principal

-

-

74,995

(74,995)

Interest and fiscal charges

-

-

3,311

(3,311)

12,026,295

12,048,507

12,297,262

(248,755)

545,000

555,000

965,305

410,305

131,108

Total expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt

-

-

131,108

5,000

5,000

9,106

Transfers (in) (Note 4)

300,000

300,000

-

Transfers (out) (Note 4)

(850,000)

(850,000)

(450,000)

400,000

(545,000)

(545,000)

(309,786)

235,214

555,000

655,519

Proceeds from sale of property

Total Other Financing Sources
Net change in fund balance

$

545,000

$

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of year

4,106
(300,000)

$

645,519

967,287

FUND BALANCES, End of year

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
Proprietary funds account for Authority operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business
enterprise. The intent of the Authority is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed primarily through
user charges.
The Authority's Insurance Internal Service Fund is its only proprietary fund. It is used to account for the payment of
the workers' compensation and liability claims.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Deposit pay as you go
Total assets

$

328,912
65,000

$

393,912

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims payable - workers' compensation (Note 11)
Claims payable - general liability (Note 11)

7,820
854,671
186,490
1,048,981

Total liabilities
NET POSITION (DEFICIT) (Note 8)
Restricted
Unrestricted

65,000
(720,069)
(655,069)

Total net position
$

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Governmental
ActivitiesInsurance
Internal Service
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

$

-

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Claims expense

137,984

Total Operating Expenses

137,984

Operating Income (Loss)

(137,984)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

229
229

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

(137,755)

Transfers in (Note 4)

450,000
450,000

Total transfers

312,245

Change in net position
NET POSITION (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

(967,314)
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Governmental
Activities Insurance
Internal
Service Fund
CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Cash payment to suppliers for goods and services
Claims paid

$

(15,855)
(171,809)
(187,664)

Total cash flows used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Transfers in

450,000
450,000

Total cash flows from noncapital activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income received

229
229

Net cash provided by investing activities

262,565

Net Cash Flows
Cash and investments at beginning of period

66,347

Cash and investments at end of period

328,912

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Flows
from Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable and claims payable
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

(137,984)
(49,680)
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUND
Fiduciary funds are presented separately from the Government-wide and Fund financial statements.
Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Authority as an agent for individuals, private organizations
and other governments.
The financial activities of Agency funds are excluded from the Government-wide financial statements, but are
presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS:
Restricted cash and investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable
Total assets

$

1,515,873
8,064

$

1,523,937

$

3,160
1,520,777

$

1,523,937

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to bondholders
Total liabilities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 1 -

GENERAL

Twin Cities Police Authority was formed in 1980, under a joint exercise of powers agreement between the Town
of Corte Madera and the City of Larkspur. The Authority is governed by a Police Council consisting of two
council members from each Member City. The purpose of the Authority is to own, manage, operate and maintain
joint police protection facilities servicing its members' areas, and to provide efficient and economical police
protection service.
As of January 2013, the joint powers agreement was amended to include the Town of San Anselmo as the third
member and to change the name from the Twin Cities Police Authority to the Central Marin Police Authority. The
purpose of this amendment was to create and provide for the operation and management of the Central Marin
Police Authority, which will render police services to the communities of Larkspur, Corte Madera and San
Anselmo. Along with the amendment the Town of San Anselmo transferred over the operation, maintenance and
repairs to existing capital assets (i.e. vehicles, equipment, etc.) as well as compensatory time balances (i.e. sick
leave, vacation leave, etc.).
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Central Marin Police Authority conform with generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the significant policies:
A. Basis of Presentation
The Authority's Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged
standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental
entities in the United States of America.
These Standards require that the financial statements described below be presented.
Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary government (the Authority). These statements include the financial activities
of the overall Authority government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities.
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the Authority's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program and (c) fees, grants and contributions that are
restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Authority's funds,
including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category-governmental and proprietary-are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual funds, each of which is displayed
in a separate column.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
The Authority reports one Internal Service Fund. The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing
of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Authority, or to
other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Authority's Insurance Internal Service Fund provides for
the payment of the workers’ compensation and liability claims.
B. Major Funds
Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets or deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of their fund-type total and five
percent of the grand total. The General Fund is always a major fund. The Authority may also select other funds it
believes should be presented as major funds.
The Authority's General Fund is the only fund and is therefore a major fund. It is the general operating fund of the
Authority. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The major revenue sources for this Fund are unrestricted revenues from the Town of Corte Madera, the City
of Larkspur, and the Town of San Anselmo. Expenditures are made for public safety.
C. Basis of Accounting
The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied. All governmental funds and
agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Thus, fund revenues are recognized
when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means the amount of the transaction
can be determined and available means the amount is collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter (generally sixty days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Amounts which could not be
measured or were not available were not accrued as revenue in the current fiscal year.
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
The Authority considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are
collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on long- term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Governmental capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of governmental long-term debt
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are revenue from other agencies, interest revenue and charges for
services. Fines and forfeitures are not susceptible to accrual because they are not measurable until
received in cash.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives or receives value without directly receiving or
giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied.
D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Authority follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
a. Prior to the end of the fiscal year, a proposed operating budget is submitted to the Police Council for
the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. The budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.
b. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. Budgets
are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
c. The Budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution before July 1.
d. The Executive Director is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line items within any
department; however, any revisions which alter total expenditures of the Authority must be approved
by Council.
E. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations
The General Fund incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the amounts below. The fund had sufficient
fund balance or revenues to finance these expenditures.
Excess of
Expenditures
Over
Appropriation
General Fund:
Administration
Investigations
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

$

577,347
60,560
152,790
74,995
3,311
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

As of June 30, 2019, the expenditures in excess of appropriations in the amount of $577,347 related to
Administration were due to Authority overspending. To address this issue, in fiscal year 2019, the Authority
has put the following budget controls in place to prevent future over spending: budget adjustments will be
processed for unexpected, unbudgeted expenses that cause overages greater than $50,000; monthly meetings
with the Executive Managers, Police Chief and the Finance Director will be held to review the Authority's
financial condition; and expenditures greater than $5,000 will require an Executive Director and the Police
Chiefs approval.
F. Deferred Compensation Plans
Authority employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority sponsored Deferred
Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal revenue Code 457. Under this plan, participants are not
taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made only at
termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as defined by the Plan.
The Authority had signed Deferred Compensation Plan administration agreements which require plan assets to be
held by a Trust for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under
these new plans are not the Authority's property and are not subject to claims by general creditors of the
Authority, they have been excluded from these financial statements.
G. Accrued Compensated Absences
The changes in compensated absences were as follows:
2019
Beginning balance
Net change

$

Ending balance

456,429
22,010

2018
$

478,439

Current portion

$

189,009

457,562
(1,133)
456,429

$

173,610

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term portion of
governmental activities compensated absences is liquidated primarily by the Operating Fund of the General Fund.
H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position or balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Authority repot is deferred outflows related to pensions
and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). See further discussion in Notes 9 and 10 below.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position or balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority reports deferred inflows related to pensions and
OPEB. See further discussion in Notes 9 and 10 below. These amounts are deferred and recognized as inflows of
resources in the period that the amounts becomes available.
I.

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority categorizes its fair value
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair
value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on
the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are inputs - other than quoted prices included within level 1 - that are observable for an asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair value
hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

J. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Authority's California Public Employees'
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and addition to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
K. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Authority's OPEB Plan
and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT). For this purpose, benefit
payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the rep01ied amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 3 -

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2019, the Authority held money in the City of Larkspur investment pool so that it can be invested at
maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.
The City's investment policy and the California Government Code permit investments in United States Treasury
Obligations, United States Agency Securities, Bankers' Acceptances, Medium-Term Notes, Commercial Paper,
Repurchase Agreements, Certificates of Deposit, the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), Money
Market Mutual Funds and the Investment Trust of California (CALTrust). Please see the City of Larkspur's basic
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, for more information.
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or not their use
is restricted under the terms of the Authority debt instruments or agreements:
Authority pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments in Agency Fund (Separate Statement):
Investments with fiscal agent
Total Cash and investments

$

2,331,852
1,515,873

$

3,847,725

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the
assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
Investments in LAIF and CalTrust are not subject to the fair value hierarchy.
NOTE 4 -

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Transfers
With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one Authority fund to another. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019, interfund transfers in the amount of $450,000 were made from the General Fund to the
Insurance Internal Service Fund for the purpose of funding the cash deficit in the Insurance Internal Service Fund
that existed prior to the transfer. See further discussion in Note 14 below.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 5 -

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date contributed. The Authority
defines capital assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
three years.
The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these
assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost of
capital assets.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected
useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority
has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets:
Vehicles
Equipment
Police Facility

10 years
10 years
40 years

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:
Balance
6/30/2018

Additions

Balance
6/30/2019

Retirements

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land

$

1,890,000

Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

-

$

-

$

1,890,000

1,890,000

-

-

1,890,000

13,815,718

-

-

13,815,718

Capital assets being depreciated:
Police facility
Vehicles

901,054

152,790

1,726,516

6,806

16,443,288

159,596

(2,072,360)

(345,393)

-

(2,417,753)

(488,695)

(64,585)

108,429

(444,851)

(1,050,707)

(133,819)

-

(1,184,526)

Total capital assets being depreciated

(3,611,762)

(543,797)

108,429

(4,047,130)

Net capital assets being depreciated

12,831,526

(384,201)

(33,800)

12,413,525

Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

(142,229)

911,615

-

1,733,322

(142,229)

16,460,655

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Police facility
Vehicles
Equipment

Governmental activity capital assets, net

$

14,721,526
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 5 -

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A. Capital Asset Contributions
Some capital assets may be acquired using Federal and State grant funds, or they may be contributed by developers
or other governments. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require that these contributions be accounted for
as revenues at the time the capital assets are contributed.
B. Depreciation Allocation
Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts
allocated to each function or programs are as follows:
Depreciation
Expense
Administration
Communications
Investigations
Juvenile
Field Operations
Traffic

NOTE 6 -

$

155,806
49,755
39,281
15,059
259,794
24,102

$

543,797

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Authority's long-term debt is summarized below:
Authorized
and Issued

Type of Obligation

Balance
June 30, 2018

Additions

Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2019

Current
Portion

Police Vehicle Lease-2017
Police Vehicle Lease-2019

$

168,768
131,108

$

125,358
-

$

131,108

$

(40,826)
(34,169)

$

84,532
96,939

$

41,779
31,229

Total

$

299,876

$

125,358

$

131,108

$

(74,995)

$

181,471

$

73,008

A. Police Vehicle Lease
In August 2017, the Authority entered into a $168,769 lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for the
purpose of purchasing five unmarked police vehicles. The lease bears interest of 2.332% and principal and interest
payments are payable annually on each September 1 commencing on September 1, 2017 through September 1,
2020. The cost of equipment was $168,769, with accumulated depreciation of $16,876 at June 30, 2019.
In January 2019, the Authority entered into a $131,108 lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for the
purpose of purchasing five unmarked police vehicles. The lease bears interest of 3.432% and principal and interest
payments are payable annually on each September 1 commencing on February 15 1, 2019 through February 15,
2022. The cost of equipment was $131,108, with accumulated depreciation of $13,111 at June 30, 2019.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 6 -

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Debt Service Requirements
At June 30, 2019, the capital lease payments to maturity, including interest payments, were as follows:
Year ending
June 30,

NOTE 7 -

Interest

Principal

Total

2019
2020
2021

$

73,008
75,054
33,409

$

5,298
3,252
1,147

$

78,306
78,306
34,556

Total

$

181,471

$

9,697

$

191,168

DEBT WITHOUT AUTHORITY COMMITMENT

Community Facilities District 2008-1
A special assessment district has been established in an area of the Authority to provide improvements to
properties located in that district. Properties in the district are assessed for the cost of improvements; these
assessments are payable solely by property owners over the term of the debt issued to finance these improvements.
The Authority is not legally or morally obligated to pay these debts or be the purchaser of last resort of any
foreclosed properties in these special assessment districts, nor is it obligated to advance Authority funds to repay
these debts in the event of default.
At June 30, 2013, one District, Twin Cities Police Authority Community Facilities District No. 2008-1, had issued
Community Facilities District No. 2008-1 Special Tax Bonds. On June 18, 2015, the Twin Cities Police Authority
Community Facilities District No. 2008-1, issued the 2015 Special Tax Refunding Bonds in the principal amount
of $17,255,000 to refund the Community Facilities District No. 2008-1 Special Tax Bonds. As of June 30, 2019,
the balance outstanding of the 2015 Special Tax Refunding Bonds is $16,240,000.
NOTE 8 -

NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES

A. Net Position
Net Position is the excess of all the Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, regardless of fund. Net Position is divided into three captions. These
captions apply only to Net Position, which is determined only at the Government-wide level, and are
described below:
Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the current net book
value of the Authority's capital assets.
Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of
agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the Authority cannot
unilaterally alter.
Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use.
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NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Balance
Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current assets generally represent a
fund's cash and receivables, less its liabilities.
The Authority's fund balances are based on spending constraints imposed on the use of resources. For programs
with multiple funding sources, the Authority prioritizes and expends funds in the following order: Restricted,
Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Each category in the following hierarchy is ranked according to the degree
of spending constraint:
Nonspendable represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent available, spendable resources even
though they are a component of assets. Fund balances required to be maintained intact and assets not expected to
be converted to cash, such as prepaids, are included. However, if proceeds realized from the sale or collection of
nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, then Nonspendable amounts are required to be
presented as a component of the applicable category. As of June 30, 2019, the Authority had nonspendable fund
balance of $46,875.
Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations,
or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a specific purpose. As of June 30, 2019, the
Authority does not have restricted fund balance.
Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by formal action of Council which may be altered only by
formal action of Council. Nonspendable amounts subject to Council commitments are included along with
spendable resources. As of June 30, 2019, the Authority does not have committed fund balance.
Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the Authority's intent to be used for a specific purpose, but are
neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by Council or its designee and may be changed at the
discretion of Council or its designee. This category includes nonspendables, when it is Council's intent to use
proceeds or collections for a specific purpose, and residual fund balances, if any, which have not been restricted or
committed. As of June 30, 2019, the Authority does not have any assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned. This
includes the residual general fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of other governmental funds.
The Authority's General Fund had unassigned fund balance of $1,575,931 as of June 30, 2019.
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C. Minimum Fund Balance Policy
On June 13, 2011 the Central Marin Police Council adopted resolution #14-11 establishing a fund balance policy.
Fund balance measures the net financial resources available to finance expenditures of future periods. The
Authority's unassigned General Fund balance will be maintained to provide the Authority with sufficient working
capital and a margin of safety to address local and regional emergencies without borrowing. The unassigned
General Fund balance may only be appropriated by resolution of the Central Marin Police Council.
Fund balance of the Authority may be committed for a specific source by formal action of the Central Marin Police
Council. Amendments or modification to the committed fund balance must also be approved by formal action of
the Central Marin Police Council. Committed fund balance does not lapse at year-end. The formal action required
to commit fund balance shall be by council resolution or majority vote.
The Central Marin Police Council delegates Authority to assign fund balance for a specific purpose to the Chief of
Police and/or their designate.
For purpose of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first and then
unrestricted. Expenditures incurred in the unrestricted fund balances shall be reduced first from the committed
fund balance, then from the assigned fund balance and lastly, the unassigned fund balance.
During fiscal year 2014, the Authority adopted a minimum dry period fund balance requirement of
$750,000 or 10% of the Authority's annual adopted budget, whichever is greater. During fiscal year 2016, the
Authority adopted resolution 2016/01 to lower this percentage rate to five percent (5%) and to apply the excess
funds from the reserve fund to its insurance fund.
During fiscal year 2017, the Authority temporarily suspended the 5% reserve policy for a period of two to three
years to allow the members to contribute and rebuild the reserve fund.
D. Budget Stabilization
Stabilization amounts may be expended only when certain specific circumstances exist. Those circumstances
should be such that they would not be expected to occur routinely. The Authority does not currently have a formal
arrangement to maintain amounts for stabilization as it is almost entirely funded by the City of Larkspur, the Town
of Corte Madera and the Town of San Anselmo. These agencies would have the authority and would be required to
contribute any amount necessary to fund the Authority's expenses should an emergency situation occur.
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PENSION PLAN

A. General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in
the Authority's separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Rate
Plans. The Authority's Miscellaneous and Safety Rate Plans are part of the public agency cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (PERF C), which is administered by the California
Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). PERF C consists of a miscellaneous pool and a
safety pool (also referred to as "risk pools"), which are comprised of individual employer miscellaneous
and safety rate plans, respectively. Individual employers may sponsor more than one miscellaneous and
safety rate plan. The employer participate in one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan regardless of the number of rate plans the employer sponsors. The Authority sponsors eight rate
plans, including three from the Town of San Anselmo, (three miscellaneous and five safety). Benefit
provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Authority resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one
of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees' Retirement Law.
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The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous Plan
Tier 1
PEPRA
Prior to
On or after
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013
2.5%@55
2%@62
5 years service
5 years service
monthly for life
monthly for life
50 - 63
52 - 67
1.426% to 2.418%
1.0% to 2.5%
8.0%
6.25%
10.609%
6.842%

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Safety Plan
Tier 1
Tier 2
PEPRA
Prior to
After
On or after
January 1, 1986
December 1, 1986 January. 1, 2013
3%@55
3%@55
2.7%@57
5 years service
5 years service
5 years service
monthly for life
monthly for life monthly for life
50 - 55
50 - 55
50 - 57
2.4% to 3%
2.4% to 3%
2.0% to 2.7%
9.0%
9.0%
11.5%
0%
18.677%
12.141%

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation

Safety Plan- San Anselmo*
Tier 1
Tier 2
Prior to
On or after
January 1, 1986
December 1, 1986
3%@50
3%@55
5 years service
5 years service
monthly for life
monthly for life
50 - 55
50 - 55
2.4% to 3%
2.4% to 3%

*The San Anselmo Safety Plan is closed to new entrants.

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of
payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions toward
the unfunded liability and side fund. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The Authority's required
contribution for the unfunded liability and side fund was $1,015,451 in fiscal year 2019.
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Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually
on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The Authority is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the contributions to the Plan were as follows:
Safety
Contributions - employer

$

2,243,924

Miscellaneous
$

200,351

Total
$

2,444,275

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions to/deductions from the
Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS
Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
As of June 30, 2019, the Authority reported net pension liability for its proportionate shares of the net pension
liabilities of the rate plans as $23,376,722.
The Authority's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability for each Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled
forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update procedures. The Authority's proportionate share of the net pension
liability was based on the Authority's plan liability and asset-related information where available, and proportional
allocations of individual plan amounts as of the valuation date where not available. The Authority's proportionate
share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2017 and 2018 was as follows:
Proportion - June 30, 2017

0.23828%

Proportion - June 30, 2018

0.24259%

Change - Increase (Decrease)
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For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized pension expense of $3,298,244. At June 30, 2019, the
Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments
Differences between actual contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Change in proportion

$

Total

$

2,444,275
510,513
2,326,203

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

154,529

-

343,716
5,779,236

(2,129)
(339,571)

(785,956)
(199,189)
$

(1,326,845)

$2,444,275 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
as pension expense as follows:
Year Ended

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows) of
Resources

30-Jun
2020

$

1,858,250

2021

1,025,060

2022

(709,039)

2023

(166,155)
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations was based on the
following methods and actuarial assumptions:
All Plans
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Projected Salary Increase
Mortality Rate Table
Post Retirement Benefit Increase

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018
Entry-Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68

7.15%
2.50%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all Funds (1)
Contract COLA up to 2.0% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.5% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this please
refer to the CalPERS 2014 experience study report available on the CalPERS website.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates.
Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.
In December 2016, CalPERS' Board of Directors voted to lower the discount rate from 7.5% to 7.0% over the next
three fiscal years, beginning in fiscal year 2018. The change in the discount rate will affect the contribution rates
beginning in fiscal year 2019 and result in increases to the normal costs, total pension liabilities and unfunded
actuarial liabilities.
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress
tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed
discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15%
discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long
term expected discount rate of 7.15% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund
(PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all
future years. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term
returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric
rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
Asset Class

New Strategic
Allocation

Real Return Years
1 - 10(a)

Real Return Years
11+(b)

Global Equity

50.0%

4.80%

5.98%

Global Fixed Income

28.0%

1.00%

2.62%

Inflation Sensitive

0.0%

0.77%

1.81%

Private Equity

8.0%

6.30%

7.23%

13.0%

3.75%

4.93%

1.0%

0.00%

-0.92%

Real Estate
Liquidity
Total

100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The
following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Authority proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the
current rate:

Net Pension Liability

1% Decrease
6.15%

Discount Rate
Current
7.15%

$

$

36,039,446

23,376,722

1% Increase
8.15%
$

12,996,788

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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A. General Information about the City's Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan
Plan Description - The Authority's Post Employment Benefit Plan is an agent multiple-employer plan. The
cost of the benefits provided by the Plan is currently being paid by the Authority on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The long-term strategy for funding the benefits provided under the Plan is currently being evaluated.
Coverage requires the employee to satisfy the requirements under CalPERS, which requires attainment of age
50 (age 52, if a new member on or after January 1, 2013). The retiree medical benefits are summarized in the
table below:
Date of Hire

Eligibility Requirements
Age 50 and 5 Years of
PERS Service

Retiree Medical Benefits
Contribution from the Authority

Term of Benefit

MEC* Only

Lifetime

100% Employee-only coverage up to the EmployeeAge 50 and 10 years of
only Kaiser Bay Area rate (pre/post Medicare status
Prior to July 1, 2007
Authority Service
applies)
100% Employee + Spouse coverage up to the
Age 50 and 15 years of
Employee + Spouse Kaiser Bay Area rate (pre/post
Authority Service
Medicare status applies)
Age 50 and 5 Years of
MEC* Only
PERS Service
After July 1, 2007 but
100% Employee-only coverage up to the Employeebefore January 1, 2013 Age 50 and 10+ years of
only Kaiser Bay Area rate (pre/post Medicare status
Authority Service
applies)
Age 50 and 5 Years of
MEC* Only
PERS Service
After 10 years of Authority service, a retiree is
On or after January 1,
vested in the Retiree Health Savings Account
2013
10+ years of Authority
(RHSA). Annual contributions made by the Authority
Service
toward each employee's account will vary as a % of
base pay.

Lifetime

Lifetime
Lifetime

Spouse Benefit
MEC*, if spouse eligible for survivor
pension
MEC*, if spouse eligible for survivor
pension
100% of premium, up to the
applicable Kaiser Bay Area rate
(pre/post Medicare status Applies)
MEC*, if spouse eligible for survivor
pension

Lifetime

MEC*, if spouse eligible for survivor
pension

Lifetime

MEC*, if spouse eligible for survivor
pension

Lifetime

Not Applicable

*MEC indicates the PEMHCA Minimum Employer Contribution; the minimum amount that must be paid by the Authority to retirees per month. This amount is
updated annually by CalPERS and is $128 per month in 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority's contributions to the Plan were $657,580.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - Membership in the plan consisted of the following at the measurement
date of June 30, 2018:
Active employees

48

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefit payments

43

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet
receiving benefit payments

-

Total

91

B. Net OPEB Liability
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The Authority's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated
August 31, 2018 that was rolled forward using standard update procedures to determine the net OPEB liability as
of June 30, 2018, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial Assumptions
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increase ( 1)
Assumed Wage Inflation (2)
Investment Rate of Return (3)
Healthcare Trend Rate

1-Jan-17
30-Jun-18
Entry Age Normal
3.56% as of June 30, 2017 and 3.62% as of June 30, 2018
2.75% per year
3.25% per year
3.00% per year
6.5% as of June 30, 2017 and 6.35% as of June 30, 2018
7.50% in 2019, step down 0.5% per year to 4.5% by 2024

(1) Used only to allocate the cost of benefits between service years
(2) Used as a component of assumed salary increases
(3) Net of plan investment expenses and including inflation

Demographic actuarial assumptions used in this valuation are based on the 2014 experience study of the California
Public Employees Retirement System using data from 1997 to 2011, except for a different basis used to project
future mortality improvements. Mortality rates used were those published by CalPERS, adjusted to back out 20
years of Scale BB to central year 2008.
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The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target Allocation

Global Equity
Fixed Income
Global Real Estate(REITs)
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
Commodities

40.0%
43.0%
8.0%
5.0%
4.0%

Total

1-10 Year
Expected Real
Rate of Return
4.80%
1.10%
3.20%
0.25%
1.50%

11+ Year Expected
Real Rate of
Return
5.98%
2.62%
5.00%
1.46%
2.87%

100.0%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.62%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Authority contributions will be made at rates
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
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C. Changes in Net OPEB Liability
The changes in the net OPEB liability follows:
Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary Net
Position
(b)

Net OPEB
Liability/(As set)
(a) - (b)

23,075,141

207,181

22,867,960

691,166
834,657
(234,759)
(641,784)

741,784
13,128
(109)
(274)
(641,784)

691,166
834,657
(234,759)
(741,784)
(13,128)
109
274
-

649,280

112,745

536,535

23,724,421

319,926

23,404,495

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
Balance at Fiscal Year End June 30, 2018
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions from the employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at Fiscal Year End June 30, 2019

Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued plan
financial report. The benefit payments and refunds include implied subsidy benefit payments in the amount
of $115,606.
D. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.62%) or 1percentage-point higher (4.62%) than the current discount rate:
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)

$

Discount Rate -1 %

Discount Rate

Discount Rate + 1 %

2.62%

3.62%

4.62%

27,845,459

$

23,404,495
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The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1- percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)
Current
Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

1% Decrease
$

19,221,859

$

23,404,495

1% Increase
$

29,382,480

E. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $1,061,787. At June 30,
2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement date
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes of assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments
Total

$

657,580
-

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

4,369
$

661,949

2,056,316
-

$

2,056,316

$657,580 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,
2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized as part of OPEB expense as follows:
Year
Ended June 30
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)
of Resources
$

52

(447,715)
(447,715)
(447,716)
(448,217)
(242,527)
(18,057)

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 11 - WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND GENERAL LIABILITY SELF-INSURANCE
PROGRAMS
The Authority participates in a joint powers agreement with the Bay Cities Powers Insurance Authority, which
consists of workers compensation and general liability risk pools. The Authority reports all of its risk management
activities in its Insurance Internal Service Fund. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated.
Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority - Workers Compensation:
Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority (BCJPIA) was created in 1986 by an agreement between certain
public agencies in Northern California to provide certain insurance coverage. It is governed by a Board of
Directors which is comprised of officials appointed by each member Agency.
The Authority is self-insured up to $150,000 per claim. BCJPIA provides coverage from its own resources for the
first $1,000,000 of loss per accident once the Authority's deductible has been met. Excess coverage is provided by
an outside insurance carrier up to statutory limits.
The BCJPIA is "a claims servicing or account pool." The Authority manages separate accounts for each pool
member from which losses and expenses of that member are paid, up to the retention limit. The Authority
purchases commercial excess insurance. The annual assessment of each member includes allocation for loss
payments, expenses, and excess insurance premiums.
Annually, the Authority evaluates the assets of each pool member in comparison with expected future liabilities.
The "financial risk position" of each member is determined by subtracting case reserves, claims incurred but not
reported amounts and claim development from members' deposit balances. If a negative risk position is found, a
supplemental amount is added to the member's annual assessment.
2019
Balances, beginning of year
Current year claims and changes
in estimate
Claims paid

$

Balances, end of year

$

879,711

2018
$

481,748
(506,788)
854,671

843,324
234,604
(198,217)

$

879,711

Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority - Liability Coverage:
BCJPIA covers general liability claims in an amount up to $1,000,000. The Authority is self-insured up to
$100,000 per claim. Once the Authority's deductible is met, BCJPIA becomes responsible for payment of all
claims up to the limit.
BCJPIA provides a risk sharing pool for its members from $1,000,000 up to $28,000,000 for each occurrence
through the California Affiliated Risk Management Authorities.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 11 - WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND GENERAL LIABILITY SELF-INSURANCE
PROGRAMS (CONTINUED)
The Authority's contributions with BCJPIA equal the ratio of the Authority's payroll to the total payrolls of all
entities participating in the same layer of each program, in each program year. Actual surpluses or losses are
shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage
basis after a retrospective rating.
2019
Balances, beginning of year
Current year claims and changes
in estimate
Claims paid

$

Balances, end of year

$

195,275

2018
$

112,722
(121,507)
186,490

169,950
292,964
(267,639)

$

195,275

Financial statements for BCJPIA may be obtained from Bickmore Risk Services, 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive,
Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833.
NOTE 12 - JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
A. General
The Authority participates in joint ventures through Joint Powers Authorities (JPAs) established under the
Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. As separate legal entities, these JPAs exercise full powers
and authorities within the scope of the related Joint Powers Agreement, including the preparation of annual
budgets, accountability for all funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the right to sue and be sued.
Obligations and liabilities of the JPAs are not those of the Authority and the other participating agencies.
Each JPA is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from each member agency. Each approval of
operating budgets, independent of any influences by member agencies beyond their representation on the Board.
B. Marin Emergency Radio Authority
The Authority is a member of Marin Emergency Radio Authority (MERA), a joint powers agency which
operates under a joint powers agreement among the County of Marin and twenty-five local agencies within the
County. The Authority's purpose is to plan, finance, implement, manage, own and operate a multijurisdictional and County-wide public safety and emergency radio system. Each agency member has agreed
to fund a pro-rata share of the debt service of the Marin Public Safety and Emergency Radio System, which
is a project comprised of certain real property, improvements and equipment constituting a public safety
emergency and public services wireless radio communications system. Audited financial statements may be
obtained by mailing a request to the Authority at Marin County Auditor Controller, County of Marin, Room
209, San Rafael, CA 94903.

54

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the Authority
Attorney there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of
the Authority.
NOTE 14 - FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND DIFFICULTIES
The Authority's financial conditions for the fiscal year are noted as follows:
•

As of June 30, 2019, the Authority's cash balance was $2,331,852 and the Authority had a deficit net
position of $29,114,573.

•

Authority-wide expenses exceeded revenues by $789,268 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

•

The Insurance Internal Service Fund's ending net position was a deficit of $665,069 at June 30, 2019.

The Authority management's plan to resolve the above financial difficulties are as follows: for the next several
years, an additional $95,000 per member agency has been included in the annual contribution calculation to help
replenish the Authority's reserve fund and each member agency's contributions have also been increased to ensure
that they cover the Authority's budgeted expenditures.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plans
Last 10 Years*
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Measurement Date

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

0.25657%

0.24254%

0.24249%

0.23828%

0.24259%

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

$ 15,964,994

$ 16,647,790

$ 20,974,457

$ 23,631,308

$ 23,376,722

Covered payroll

$ 5,197,859

$ 5,307,023

$ 4,971,960

$ 4,564,736

$ 4,484,075

312.11%

313.69%

421.85%

527.01%

521.33%

79.74%

78.10%

73.92%

73.31%

75.26%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered payroll
Plan's Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Change of assumption - In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.
* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.

Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plans
Last 10 Years*
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30,

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions

$ 2,201,881

$ 1,949,830

$ 2,039,736

$ 1,982,241

$ 2,444,275

(2,201,881)

(1,949,830)

(2,039,736)

(1,982,241)

(2,444,275)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll

$ 5,307,023

$ 4,971,960

$ 4,564,736

$ 4,484,075

$ 4,789,867

41.49%

39.22%

44.68%

44.21%

51.03%

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
AN AGENT-MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
For the measurement year ending June 30
Last 1 0 fiscal years*
Measurement Date

6/30/2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments

$

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Administrative expense
Other expenses
Benefit payments

691,166
834,657
(234,759)
(641,784)

6/30/2017

$

796,903
739,491
(2,683,306)
(612,150)

649,280
23,075,141

(1,759,062)
24,834,203

$ 23,724,421

$ 23,075,141

$

$

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

741,784
13,128
(109)
(274)
(641,784)
112,745
207,181

107,181
100,000

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

$

Net OPEB liability- ending (a)-(b)

$ 23,404,495

$ 22,867,960

1.37%

0.91%

$ 5,014,123

$ 4,564,736

466.77%

500.97%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered-employee payroll
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

319,926

712,150
7,234
(53)
(612,150)

$

207,181

Notes to schedule:
* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of GASB 75 implementation.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
AN AGENT-MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For Fiscal year ending June 30
Last 10 fiscal years*
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2019
1,475,890

2018

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

$

$

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

818,310

$

630,532

Covered-employee payroll

$

5,181,512

$

5,014,123

657,580

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

1,372,316
741,784

12.69%

14.79%

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2017

Notes to Schedule
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Valuation Date
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increase
Assumed Wage Inflation
Investment Rate of Return
Healthcare Trend Rate

3 .56% as of June 30, 2017
3 .62% as of June 30, 2018
2.92% as of June 30, 2016
3 .56% as of June 30, 2017
2.75% per year
2.75% per year
3.25% per year
3.25% per year
3.00% per year
3.00% per year
6.5% as of June 30, 2017 and
6.35% as of June 30, 2018 6.5% as of June 30 2016 and 2017
7.50% in 2019, step down 0.5%
7.50% in 2019, step down 0.5%
per year to 4.5% by 2024
per year to 4.5% by 2024

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
GENERAL FUND-GOVERNMENTAL FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2019
Equipment
Operating

Replacement

Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments

$

1,980,153

$

22,787

$

2,002,940

Accounts receivable

98,649

39,081

137,730

Prepaids

46,875

-

46,875

Total assets

$

2,125,677

$

61,868

$

2,187,545

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

101,470

-

101,470

Accrued liabilities

442,623

-

442,623

Deposits payable

20,646

-

20,646

564,739

-

564,739

46,875

-

46,875

1,514,063

61,868

1,575,931

1,560,938

61,868

1,622,806

Total liabilities
Fund Balances: (Note 12)
Nonspendable
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$

2,125,677
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$

61,868

$

2,187,545

Business Item A -Attachment 1

CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Equipment
Replacement

Operating

Total

REVENUES:
Revenue from other agencies:
City of Larkspur

$

3,925,442

$

-

$

3,925,442

Town of Corte Madera

3,511,174

-

3,511,174

Town of San Anselmo

4,384,691

-

4,384,691

36,046

-

36,046

State COPS grant

466,205

-

466,205

Other agency

246,685

-

246,685

49,334

1,284

50,618

Police charges

154,540

-

154,540

Revenue from CFD

400,000

-

400,000

36,084

51,082

87,166

13,210,201

52,366

13,262,567

Administration

3,669,224

-

3,669,224

Communications

1,081,223

-

1,081,223

Investigations

853,625

-

853,625

Juvenile

327,253

-

327,253

5,611,070

-

5,611,070

523,771

-

523,771

-

152,790

152,790

Principal retirement

-

74,995

74,995

Interest and fiscal charges

-

3,311

3,311

12,066,166

231,096

12,297,262

1,144,035

(178,730)

State vehicle abatement

Investment earnings

Other revenue
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Field operations
Traffic
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Total expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of property
Transfers (in) (Note 4)
Transfers (out) (Note 4)
Total Other Financing Sources

965,305

9,106

-

9,106

-

43,154

43,154

(493,154)

-

(493,154)

(484,048)

174,262

(309,786)

Net change in fund balances

659,987

(4,468)

655,519

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of year

900,951

66,336

967,287

FUND BALANCES, End of year

$

66

1,560,938

$

61,868

$

1,622,806
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
OPERATING FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2019
Central Marin
Police

Police

San Anselmo

Larkspur

Corte Madera

Building

Cops State

Authority

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Maintenance

Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments

$

392,584

$

992,699

$

130,757

$

130,694

$

130,714

$

202,705

$ 1,980,153

Accounts receivable

-

98,649

-

-

-

-

98,649

Prepaid

-

46,875

-

-

-

-

46,875

392,584

$ 1,138,223

202,705

$ 2,125,677

Accounts payable

-

99,888

-

-

-

1,582

101,470

Accrued liabilities

-

442,623

-

-

-

-

442,623

Deposits payable

-

20,646

-

-

-

-

20,646

-

563,157

-

-

-

1,582

564,739

-

46,875

-

-

-

-

46,875

392,584

528,191

130,757

130,694

130,714

201,123

1,514,063

392,584

575,066

130,757

130,694

130,714

201,123

1,560,938

392,584

$ 1,138,223

202,705

$ 2,125,677

Total assets

$

$

130,757

$

130,694

$

130,714

$

Liabilities:

Total liabilities

Fund Balances: (Note 12)
Nonspendable
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund
balances

$

$

67

130,757

$

130,694

$

130,714

$
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
OPERATING FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Central Marin
Police

Police

San Anselmo

Larkspur

Corte Madera

Building

Cops State

Authority

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Maintenance

Total

REVENUES:
Revenue from other agencies:
City of Larkspur

$

-

$ 3,892,109

$

-

$

33,333

$

-

$

-

$ 3,925,442

Town of Corte Madera

-

3,477,841

-

-

33,333

-

3,511,174

Town of San Anselmo

-

4,351,358

33,333

-

-

-

4,384,691

State vehicle abatement
State COPS grant
Other agency
Investment earnings

-

36,046

-

-

-

-

36,046

466,205

-

-

-

-

-

466,205

-

246,685

-

-

-

-

246,685

6,969

34,640

1,890

1,870

1,900

2,065

49,334

Police charges

-

154,540

-

-

-

-

154,540

Revenue from CFD

-

250,000

-

-

-

150,000

400,000

Other revenue

-

36,084

-

-

-

-

36,084

473,174

12,479,303

35,223

35,203

35,233

152,065

13,210,201

Administration

-

3,568,874

-

-

-

100,350

3,669,224

Communications

-

1,081,223

-

-

-

-

1,081,223

Investigations

-

853,625

-

-

-

-

853,625

Juvenile

-

327,253

-

-

-

-

327,253

Field operations

-

5,611,070

-

-

-

-

5,611,070

Traffic

-

523,771

-

-

-

-

523,771

-

11,965,816

-

-

-

100,350

12,066,166

473,174

513,487

35,223

35,203

35,233

51,715

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

1,144,035

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of property

-

9,106

-

-

-

-

9,106

Transfers (in) (Note 4)

-

343,411

-

-

-

-

343,411

(300,000)

(536,565)

-

-

-

-

(836,565)

(300,000)

(184,048)

-

-

-

-

(484,048)

Net change in fund balances

173,174

329,439

35,223

35,203

35,233

51,715

659,987

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of year

219,410

245,627

95,534

95,491

95,481

149,408

900,951

201,123

$ 1,560,938

Transfers (out) (Note 4)
Total Other Financing Sources

FUND BALANCES, End of year

$

392,584

$

575,066

$

68

130,757

$

130,694

$

130,714

$
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AGENCY FUND
Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Authority as an agent for individuals, private organizations
and other governments.
Police Facility Redemption - accounts for the assessments and expenses of the Community Facilities District
2008-01.
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CENTRAL MARIN POLICE AUTHORITY
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
JUNE 30, 2019
Balance

Balance

July 1, 2018

Additions

Reductions

June 30, 2019

Policy Facility Redemption
Assets:
Restricted cash and investments

$

Accounts Receivable
Total assets

1,341,102

$

9,386

1,620,742

$

8,064

1,445,972

$

9,386

1,515,873
8,064

$

1,350,488

$

1,628,806

$

1,455,357

$

1,523,937

$

-

$

19,443

$

16,283

$

3,160

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to property owners and bondholders
Total liabilities

1,350,488
$

1,350,488

70

1,609,363
$

1,628,806

1,439,074
$

1,455,357

1,520,777
$

1,523,937
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January 10, 2020
To The Honorable Members
of the Police Council of the Central Marin Police Authority
Larkspur, California
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, general fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Central Marin Police Authority, California (Authority) for the year
ended June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit.
Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated March 14, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the Authority and its environment, including internal
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1)
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or
governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the entity.
We performed the audit according to the timing previously communicated to you on the engagement
letter.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As
described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority changed accounting policies related to
financial reporting by adopting the following Statements of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB
Statement) in 2019:


GASB No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations



GASB No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
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To The Honorable Members
of the Police Council of the Central Marin Police Authority
Larkspur, California
Page 4
We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Authority’s financial
statements were:
 Depreciable lives and estimated residual value of property and equipment
 Investments valuations
 Accumulated depreciation
 Pension plans (actuarial assumptions)
 Net Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) plan (actuarial assumptions)
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the financial statements were:








Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Investments
Long Term Debt
Capital Assets
Employee Retirement Plans
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan
Going Concern

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually
or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.
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Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letters dated January 10, 2020.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on general fund combining financial statements, operating fund combining
financial statements, and agency fund statement of changes in assets and liabilities, which accompany
the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Authority will continue as a going
concern.
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As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the Authority’s financial conditions are as follows:


As of June 30, 2019, the Authority's cash balance was $2,331,852 and the Authority had a deficit
net position of $29,114,573.



Authority-wide expenses exceeded revenues by $789,268 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.



The Insurance Internal Service Fund's ending net position was a deficit of $665,069 at June 30,
2019.

These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern.
Management's plans regarding those matters are also described in Note 14.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of Police Council and management of the Authority and
is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

Badawi and Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Berkeley, California
January 10, 2020
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January 10, 2020

To The Honorable Members
of the Police Council of the Central Marin Police Authority
Larkspur, California
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, general fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Central Marin Police Authority(Authority) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control
included on the Schedule of Material Weakness to be material weaknesses.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Police Council, and others
within Authority, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Badawi & Associates, CPAs
Berkeley, California
January 10, 2020
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Schedule of Material Weakness
2019-001 Super-User Rights and Access to Accounting Records and Assets
Criteria: A super-user is an individual who has full access over the Authority's financial system including all
modules and all functions. This type of access should be limited to as few employees as possible. If possible,
super-user rights should be removed from the Finance Department. During our review of the Authority's internal
controls for proper segregation of duties and procedures, we noted areas in which controls need to be improved
and employee's access and/or duties revised. Good internal controls require that employees with access to the
Authority's assets not have access to make changes to the Authority's accounting records for the same assets.
Condition: The City of Larkspur is the custodian for the Authority’s financial records and maintains the
Authority’s general ledger. Finance Director of the City of Larkspur is a super-user of the Authority's financial
system.
Effect: Internal controls are weakened when a super-user is also involved with the daily functions in the Finance
Department such as the review process. Inappropriate access to records and access could potentially result in
undetected errors or unauthorized transactions.
Cause: The above condition was caused by a limited number of employees in the Finance Department.
Recommendation: We recommend the Authority to implement more review process to mitigate the potential
control weakness resulted from super-user.

Management’s response:
Due to the small size of the Finance Department, it is not practical to have a designated super user that is not
involved in processing financial transactions.
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Status of Prior Year Schedule of Material Weaknesses
2018-01: Financial Conditions and Long-term Liabilities of Central Marin Police Authority
This comment is an update of matters repeated from prior years as discussed in comment 2017-01, as well as
comments 2016-01 and 2015-01, which are not repeated in this report since they are substantially redundant with
the comments below.
Criteria: Sound fiscal and budget policies should be promptly established to fund the Authority's long-term
liabilities and financial conditions. The funding should be incorporated into the Authority's annual budgets and
operations as well as financial projections and forecasts.
Condition: For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority's negative financial conditions are noted as follows:
•

The Authority's net deficit increased further by $788,958 to $28,325,305 as of June 30, 2018 after a
restatement to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The deficit net
position includes an unrestricted net position deficit in the amount of $42,921,473.

•

The Authority's total expenditures exceeded the budget by $134,212.

•

The Authority has a minimum dry period reserve requirement of $750,000 or 10% of the annual adopted
budget, whichever is greater. During fiscal year 2016, the Authority adopted resolution 20 16/0 1 to lower
this percentage rate to five percent (5%) and to apply the excess funds from the reserve fund to its
insurance fund. During fiscal year 20 1 7, the Authority temporarily suspended the 5% reserve policy for
a period of two to three years to allow the members to contribute and rebuild the reserve fund. As of June
30, 2018, the General Fund's unassigned fund balance had increased to $967,287.

•

As reported on the Statement of Net Position and discussed in Note 1 OC to the financial statements, the
Authority had a material unfunded retiree healthcare liability (Net OPEB Liability) in the amount of $22.9
million. To date only $450,000 has been set-aside to fund this obligation.

•

The Insurance Internal Service Fund's net deficit increased by $19,040 to a net position deficit in the
amount of $967,314 at June 30, 2018. The Authority must take the cost of general liability and worker's
compensation claims into account when budgeting and calculating the contributions each member
agency should make to the Authority.

The above unfunded liabilities are long term liabilities that are expected to come due over an extended period.
While the budget for fiscal 2018 included provisions for contributions at existing rates, the above financial
conditions and trends indicate that contribution rates will increase creating a great drain of current limited
resources and decreasing resources available for current services.
Effect: There is a significant increased risk that the above financial conditions, as well as retiree medical and
pension liabilities will grow to unsustainable levels unless sound funding strategies are adopted.
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Recommendations:
•

•

•
•

It is essential that the Authority promptly develop and implement an effective budget and financial plan
to address the financial issues as noted above, to ensure the Authority's short and long-term sustainable
financial future.
Expenditures should be closely monitored by management and the Police Council to make sure that
expenditures are within the adopted budget. Expenditures in excess of adopted appropriations should be
approved through the budget amendment process to ensure that resources are available to fund the
increase.
The budget should include strategies to build up reserves so that the Authority can meet the terms of the
Authority's minimum fund balance policy.
The Authority's budget should also include plans to address the future rising costs of health care, pension
and the upcoming change in the discount rate for CalPERS which will further increase pension costs and
the unfunded liability.

Status: Not considered as material weakness in FY2019.
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2018-02: Review, Approval and Segregation of Duties in Major Control Areas
We noted the following control areas in which review and approval by a second employee could mitigate
potential control weaknesses. In some instances, we understand the review is taking place, but it is not
documented in a formal manner. In other instances, a review and approval process needs to be established.
a. Super-User Rights and Access to Accounting Records and Assets
Criteria: A super-user is an individual who has full access over the Authority's financial system including all
modules and all functions. This type of access should be limited to as few employees as possible. If possible,
super-user rights should be removed from the Finance Department. During our review of the Authority's internal
controls for proper segregation of duties and procedures, we noted areas in which controls need to be improved
and employee's access and/or duties revised. Good internal controls require that employees with access to the
Authority's assets not have access to make changes to the Authority's accounting records for the same assets.
Condition: The Finance Director is a super-user of the Authority's financial system. In addition, the Finance
Director can perform the following functions:
• Cash Receipts - The Finance Director can collect cash receipts, prepare the accounts receivable reconciliations,
perform write-offs, adjust the general ledger and prepare the bank reconciliations.
• Accounts Payable - The Finance Director can process accounts payable, has access to blank check stock, is a
check signer, has access to the vendor database, reviews the check registers, can adjust the general ledger and
performs the bank reconciliation.
• Payroll - The Finance Director can process payroll, is a check signer, has access to blank check stock, reviews the
check runs, can adjust the general ledger and performs the bank reconciliations.
• Budget - The Finance Director can adjust the budget, adjust the general ledger and has full access to both the
accounts payable and payroll modules.
Effect: Internal controls are weakened when a super-user is also involved with the daily functions in the Finance
Department such as the review process. Inappropriate access to records and access could potentially result in
undetected errors or unauthorized transactions.
Cause: The above condition was caused by a limited number of Authority employees in the Finance Department.
Recommendation: The Authority should review the necessity of granting any employee the super-user rights to
the financial system. For any module within the financial system that the Finance Director does not need, their
access should be limited to read-only. While we have discussed the conditions we noted during the audit, the
Authority will need to review the current duties assigned to each Finance employee and determine whether
duties need to be revised or whether additional review procedures need to be implemented in order to separate
the accounting records from the associated assets.
Status: see comment 2019-001
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